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REGISTER OF ACTIONS
CASE NO. D­10­426817­D

Sandra Lynn Nance, Plaintiff vs. Christopher Michael Ferraro,
Defendant.

§
§
§
§
§
§

Case Type: Divorce ­ Complaint
Subtype: Complaint Subject Minor(s)

Date Filed: 03/15/2010
Location: Department F

Cross­Reference Case Number: D426817

RELATED CASE INFORMATION

Related Cases
D­09­409606­C (Linked ­ 1J1F)

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys
Defendant Ferraro, Christopher Michael Shannon R. Wilson

  Retained
702­385­2500(W)

  54 Hempstad DR 
  Sound Beach, NY 11789

 

Plaintiff Nance, Sandra Lynn Female Pro Se
  11220 Hedgemont AVE 
  Las Vegas, NV 89138

 

Subject MinorNance, Evan Daniel Male

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

04/29/2010  Status Check  (11:30 AM) (Judicial Officer Giuliani, Cynthia N.)
 

   

Minutes
04/29/2010 11:30 AM
­ David Mann, bar number 11194, present with
Plaintiff in an unbundled capacity. Court
informed counsel and Plaintiff of the results of
the UCCJEA telephone conference with Judge
Stack from the Nassau County court. Court
stated Judge Stack requested this Court to take
temporary emergency jurisdiction over these
matters to allow Plaintiff's two older children to
be interviewed by the Family Mediation Center
(FMC). Argument by Mr. Sachs regarding the
New York investigation into Plaintiff's and the
two older children's allegations against the
Defendant, as well as the Restraining Order
issued in New York against Ms. Nance.
Discussion. COURT ORDERED, parties are
referred to FMC for a CHILD INTERVIEW of
Desmond and Kayla Nance. RETURN
HEARING calendared for MAY 06, 2010 at
10:00 A.M. PLAINTIFF is ADMONISHED NOT
TO COACH the CHILDREN for the
INTERVIEW, nor DISCUSS the LITIGATION or
COURT PROCEEDINGS with the children. The
MINUTE ORDER shall SUFFICE as the post
hearing ORDER.

 
04/29/2010 2:00 PM

 
   Parties Present

Return to Register of Actions
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REGISTER OF ACTIONS
CASE NO. D­10­426817­D

Sandra Lynn Nance, Plaintiff vs. Christopher Michael Ferraro,
Defendant.

§
§
§
§
§
§

Case Type: Divorce ­ Complaint
Subtype: Complaint Subject Minor(s)

Date Filed: 03/15/2010
Location: Department F

Cross­Reference Case Number: D426817

RELATED CASE INFORMATION

Related Cases
D­09­409606­C (Linked ­ 1J1F)

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys
Defendant Ferraro, Christopher Michael Shannon R. Wilson

  Retained
702­385­2500(W)

  54 Hempstad DR 
  Sound Beach, NY 11789

 

Plaintiff Nance, Sandra Lynn Female Pro Se
  11220 Hedgemont AVE 
  Las Vegas, NV 89138

 

Subject MinorNance, Evan Daniel Male

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

05/06/2010  Return Hearing  (10:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Giuliani, Cynthia N.)Return: Child Interview
 
   Minutes

05/06/2010 10:00 AM
­ David Mann, bar number 11194, present with
Plaintiff in an unbundled capacity. Sonia
Martinez, Law Clerk, present with Mr. Mann and
Plaintiff. Court reviewed the issues then inquired
if counsel had reviewed the child interview
report. Both counsel stated they had reviewed
the report. Court informed counsel and Plaintiff
it had conducted a telephone conference with
Judge Stack from Nassau County, New York
prior to the hearing. Court stated Judge Stack
needs to conduct a hearing in New York and
Nevada should keep temporary jurisdiction until
the New York hearing could be scheduled.
Court stated Judge Stack is very concerned
about this case and has received a copy of the
child interview report and has read it. In the
interim, this Court will put temporary Orders into
place. Argument and discussion regarding
temporary Orders. Mr. Mann and Mr. Sachs
stated they will work together to facilitate
visitation for Defendant with the child. Argument
by Mr. Mann regarding the jurisdictional issues.
Argument by Mr. Sachs regarding the upcoming
motion to dismiss the Nevada case. Discussion.
COURT ORDERED, both parties shall
PREPARE and FILE their FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE FORMS (FDFS). CHILD
SUPPORT will be set at EIGHTEEN PERCENT
(18%) of DEFENDANT'S INCOME. Until the
FDFS are received, counsel shall CONFER with
DEFENDANT and ADVISE him he should pay
some amount for child support in the interim.
PLAINTIFF shall be designated as
TEMPORARY PRIMARY PHYSICAL
CUSTODIAN. STATUS CHECK regarding the
New York hearing calendared for JULY 08,
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2010 at 9:00 A.M. DEFENDANT shall receive
TELEPHONE CONTACT with the child on
MONDAYS, WEDNESDAYS and SUNDAYS at
6:00 P.M. LAS VEGAS TIME. The adults DO
NOT need to SPEAK to each other. Mr. Sachs
shall PREPARE the ORDER. Mr. Mann shall
REVIEW the ORDER for form and content then
SIGN OFF.

 
    Parties Present

Return to Register of Actions
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REGISTER OF ACTIONS
CASE NO. D­10­426817­D

Sandra Lynn Nance, Plaintiff vs. Christopher Michael Ferraro,
Defendant.

§
§
§
§
§
§

Case Type: Divorce ­ Complaint
Subtype: Complaint Subject Minor(s)

Date Filed: 03/15/2010
Location: Department F

Cross­Reference Case Number: D426817

RELATED CASE INFORMATION

Related Cases
D­09­409606­C (Linked ­ 1J1F)

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys
Defendant Ferraro, Christopher Michael Shannon R. Wilson

  Retained
702­385­2500(W)

  54 Hempstad DR 
  Sound Beach, NY 11789

 

Plaintiff Nance, Sandra Lynn Female Pro Se
  11220 Hedgemont AVE 
  Las Vegas, NV 89138

 

Subject MinorNance, Evan Daniel Male

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

11/21/2011  All Pending Motions  (1:30 PM) (Judicial Officer Giuliani, Cynthia N.)
 
   Minutes

11/21/2011 1:30 PM
­ DEFT'S MOTION TO REHEAR/RECONSIDER
THE OCTOBER 12, 2011 CASE
MANAGEMENT HEARING OR SET ASIDE
THE ORDERS ISSUED AT THE HEARING; TO
CLARIFY THE PARTIES' CUSTODY
ARRANGEMENT; THAT THE COURT
DIVORCE THE PARTIES AT THE HEARING
OF THIS MOTION OR SET THIS MATTER
FOR A TRIAL; CLARIFYING THE DEFT'S
VISITATION UNDER THE PARTIES'
STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT;
CLARIFYING THE PARTIES' CUSTODY
ARRANGEMENT UNDER THE STIPULATED
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT; ORDERING
THE PLTF TO PAY ONE­HALF OF THE COST
FOR THE OUTSOURCED PSYCHOLOGICAL
EVALUATION FOR THE MINOR CHILD; FOR
DEFT'S ATTY'S FEES AND COSTS
INCURRED HEREIN; AND RELATED
MATTERS...PLTF'S OPPOSITION AND
COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF
VISITATION, PROTECTIVE ORDER OR
BEHAVIOR ORDER, SETTING MATTER FOR
TRIAL, ORDER NUNC PRO TUNC, ATTY'S
FEES & COSTS AND SANCTIONS Court called
the case then reviewed the issues. Court
advised the parties and counsel it had read all
the documents and the emails. Court
acknowledged receipt of Defendant's Reply and
it's review. Discussion regarding the high conflict
between the parties and the child's welfare.
Argument by Mr. Goodman regarding the
motion issues. Argument by Mr. Roys in rebuttal
and for the Countermotion issues. Further
argument and discussion. COURT stated it's
FINDINGS then ORDERED, DR. JOHN
PAGLINI shall PERFORM the CHILD

   AA00095
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CUSTODY EVALUATION. The parties shall
CALL his OFFICE WITHIN 24 HOURS to make
the APPOINTMENT for the evaluation. The
RETURN HEARING for the CUSTODY
EVALUATION REPORT, calendared for
JANUARY 24, 2012 at 10:00 A.M., shall
STAND. DR. PAGLINI shall CONTACT
CHAMBERS if he is UNABLE to COMPLETE
the EVALUATION REPORT in time for the
RETURN HEARING. The parties shall share
JOINT LEGAL and JOINT PHYSICAL
CUSTODY. Pending the CUSTODY
EVALUATION, DEFENDANT shall receive
HOLIDAY VISITATION with the child IN NEW
YORK. DEFENDANT shall have the child from
DECEMBER 11 through 25, 2011. The parties
shall COMMUNICATE through the internet
website known as "OUR FAMILY WIZARD".
The parties shall have their accounts SET UP by
FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2011. There shall be
NO DIRECT COMMUNICATION between the
parties, EXCEPT in case of an EMERGENCY.
All regular COMMUNICATION shall TAKE
PLACE through the website. The parties are
ADMONISHED to CALL CHILD PROTECTIVE
SERVICES (CPS) if they believe the CHILD is
being HARMED. DEFENDANT'S NAME shall
be ADDED to the CHILD'S THERAPIST'S
RECORDS to allow him to OBTAIN
INFORMATION about the child's progress in
therapy. PLAINTIFF shall CALL the
THERAPIST'S OFFICE by 5:00 P.M. TODAY,
NOVEMBER 21, 2011. PLAINTIFF shall MAKE
SURE Defendant's NAME is on the child's
DAYCARE and DOCTOR RECORDS to allow
his ACCESS to the child's INFORMATION.
DEFENDANT shall PREPARE and FILE a
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM (FDF) by
NOVEMBER 28, 2011 then SERVE IT to the
opposing side. The parties shall CO­PARENT
for the BEST INTERESTS of the child. The
parties are referred to the COOPERATIVE
PARENTING CLASSES through the University
Of Nevada Las Vegas (UNLV). The parties shall
be ALLOWED to TAKE the CLASSES ONLINE
at www.parentsinconflict.com. BOTH parents
shall receive VIDEO CONTACT with the child
when he is with the other parent through the
internet website known as "SKYPE". The
"SKYPE" contact shall take place 3 DAYS PER
WEEK on MONDAYS, WEDNESDAYS and
SATURDAYS. When the child is IN NEW YORK
with Defendant the contact shall TAKE PLACE
AT 5:00 P.M. NEVADA time, 8:00 P.M. NEW
YORK time. When the child is in LAS VEGAS,
the contact shall TAKE PLACE at 7:00 P.M.
NEVADA time and 10:00 P.M. NEW YORK time.
The parties shall either STRUCTURE an
AGREEMENT or BRING the APPROPRIATE
MOTION before the Court to HYPHENATE the
child's SURNAME. The issues of the PAYMENT
for the EVALUATION and CHILD SUPPORT
shall be HELD IN ABEYANCE pending receipt
of DEFENDANT'S FDF. Absolute DECREE Of
Divorce is GRANTED. PLAINTIFF shall
PREPARE and FILE an AFFIDAVIT OF
RESIDENT WITNESS. The parties are
ADMONISHED NOT TO REMARRY until they
have received a CONFORMED, "FILED"
STAMPED COPY of the DECREE OF
DIVORCE. Mr. Roy shall PREPARE the
DECREE OF DIVORCE. Mr. Goodman shall
REVIEW the DECREE Of Divorce as to form
and content then SIGN OFF. Mr. Goodman shall
PREPARE the post hearing ORDER. Mr. Roy
shall REVIEW the ORDER as to form and
content then SIGN OFF.

 
    Parties Present

Return to Register of Actions
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Chris and his extended family are devoted to Evan's upbringing, and Chris wants to 

ensure that Evan has the wealth of opportunity that he was afforded growing up in New York: 

terrific schools, participation in extracurricular activities, and all that rural life has to offer just 

outside one of the world's largest cities. Evan has lived primarily in Las Vegas since his birth, 

but has spent considerable time in -N ew York, and he loves it there. He has extended family, all 

of whom are close to Evan: active grandparents, aunts and uncles and cousins. Evan has 

friends his own age in New York, indeed, Evan's best friend, lives in New York. In the last 

three years, Chris, a former professional hockey player, has built a successful second career in 

New York. Chris and his brother own and operate Ferraro Brothers Hockey, which includes a 

youth hockey program and clinics for players of all ages from pee wee through college. This 

gives Chris the ability to be with Evan both before and after school. Evan participates in 

hockey already, and has lots of friends his own age in the programs that Chris runs. 

Chris has narrowed his search for the best school for Evan to attend if allowed to 

relocate, but in addition to several great schools to choose from, Evan will have access to a 

number of extracurricular activities — hockey being the most obvious — but others as well 

(assuming Sandra agrees and Evan desires to participate), including but not necessarily limited 

to. swimming, soccer, baseball, lacrosse, and music lessons (Evan is already learning the 

guitar). 

In Las Vegas, although Chris has offered to pay for private schools and extracurricular 

activities for Evan, Sandra has declined to get him involved in much of anything. Chris 

concludes, mostly from what Evan does not say, that Evan does not do much at all outside of 

going to school and Sandra's home and does not play with many friends out of school in Las 

Vegas. Chris has FaceTime sessions with Evan three days per week, and Evan rarely talks 

about doing any activities or seeing friends outside of school. Evan has two half-siblings, but 

they are considerably older, a sister, Kayla, who is 12 and a brother, Desmond, who is 18 and 

will graduate from high school this year. 

Sandra is not the most involved or stable parent. She has not held a regular job in the 

nearly ten years that Chris has known her. He is informed and believes that she is currently 
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1 living in her second home to be foreclosed on; the first foreclosure occurred in or about 2009 

2 and the second one occurred in or about June 2014; therefore, if this information is accurate, it 

3 is likely that she will be required to move again soon. Sandra occasionally talks about 

4 relocating herself back to Chicago, where she is from. 

	

5 	For these and additional reasons provided in the following memorandum of points and 

6 authorities, Chris is better suited to act as Evan's primary physical custodian as Evan transitions 

7 to the first grade, and Chris respectfully moves the Court to: 

	

8 	(1) Reaffirm that the parties' shall continue to share joint legal custody; 

	

9 	(2) Modify the present joint physical custody order to grant Chris primary physical 

10 custody of Evan in New York; 

	

4.4 	11 	(3) Incorporate the proposed visitation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A to ensure 

0 12 frequent visitation for Evan and Sandra, 0 E-0 

	

ce) 	

▪ 	

13 	(4) Order Sandra to pay statutory child support; 

	

14 	(5) Order Chris to pay reasonable costs of transportation; and a 
_Jg • 15 	(6) Grant other related relief as is necessary and just. 

	

16 	DATED this  iq or.  day of June, 2015. 0 

17 

18 

19 	 ShanfoR. ilson (9933) 
By 

Todd MojOdy (5430) 

tei: Ire) 

20 	 10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 

21 
Attorneys for Defendant Christopher Michael Ferraro 

22 

NOTICE OF MOTION 23 

25 MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY, FOR RELOCATION OF MINOR CHILD, AND 

26 OTHER RELATED RELIEF has been set for hearing on the 12 day of  August 

27 20 15   , at the hour of  1 0 : 00 A 	.m., in Department  F  , Courtroom  3  	of the Family 

28 Courts and Services Center, 601 N. Pecos Rd., Las Vegas, Nevada. 
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HUTCHISON & STEF,FEN, LLC 

24 	N OTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that DEFENDANT CHRISTOPHER FERRARO'S 
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POINTS & AUTHORITIES 

2 1. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

3 A. INT" ODUCTION 

4 	Defendant! Counterclaimant Chris Ferraro ("Chris") and Plaintiff! Counterdefendant 

5 Sandra Nance ("Sandra") met in or about 2006. Beginning in 2007, they lived together for a 

6 little less than one year before Sandra became pregnant with Evan. Their son, Evan, was born 

7 September 30, 2008. Since that time, Chris and Sandra have attempted to reconcile a few 

8 times, and they even married on January 16, 2010. However, the marriage was short-lived. 

9 Shortly after they married, Sandra made a number of ugly allegations against Chris, none were 

10 ever substantiated.' The parties ultimately resolved their differences through a stipulated 

11 parenting plan. In March 2012, parenting coordinator Margaret Pickard was appointed and she 

12 helped the parties negotiate a parenting plan, which she drafted and filed November 30, 2012. 

13 The parenting plan provided that the parties would share joint legal and joint physical custody 

14 of Evan, which they have done, despite the fact that Chris lives and works in Long Island, New 

15 York. (Stip. & Ord. filed Nov. 30, 2012, hereinafter "Parenting Plan" at 2:4-5, 5:18-21.) Evan 

16 

The allegations on both sides prompted the Court to order a custody evaluation of both 
18 parties. The evaluation was performed by John Paglini, Psy.D. His evaluation was dated March 

6, 2012 and is on file herein (hereinafter, "Paglini Report"). It did not reflect particularly well on 
19 either party. Even though Dr. Paglini concluded that Chris's Personal Assessment Inventory (PAI) 

revealed narcissitic and obsessive compulsive personality traits, Dr. Paglini's recommendations 
did not include any further exploration of that allegation or treatment. Nevertheless, Sandra's 

21 attorney's have not hesitated to raise that allegation against Chris. Therefore, Chris submitted 
himself to further evaluation by Norton A. Roitman, M.D., DFAPA. Dr. Roitman is a Nevada- 

22 licensed and Board Certified Specialist in Adult, and Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. To ensure 
23 a comparison of "apples to apples," Dr. Roitman recommended a repetition of the same tests 

performed by Dr. Paglini. This time the tests were performed by Luis F. Mortillaro, Ph.D. Dr. 
24 Mortillaro is a former Chief Psyschologist of the Clark County Juvenile Court and performed 

custody evaluations like Dr. Paglini's for the Clark County Family Court. With Dr. Mortillaro's 
25 testing and input, and his own evaluation of Chris, Dr. Roitman did not detect those personality 
26 traits alleged by Dr. Paglini, and found that, "He is devoid of any significance [sic] neurocognitive 

symptoms. Mr. Ferraro has no addictions, compulsions or mental illness that would interfere with 
27 his capacity to parent effectively and safely." It is noted that this was not a custody evaluation in 

the sense that Evan was not a participant because that would not be allowed without Sandra's 
consent. 

17 

20 

28 

4 
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is now six years, nine months old and just completed kindergarten. 

The remainder of Chris's statement of facts is organized as follows. Section 1(B) 

contains a short biography of Evan, Sandra and Chris, in that order. Section 1(C) provides 

some information about the schools that Chris is looking into for Evan, if he is allowed to 

relocate to New York. Section l(D) is an overview of the timeshare under the parenting plan 

and how the parties have exercised their timeshares since its implementation. Finally, Section 

1(E) reviews parenting differences and co-parenting challenges arising between Sandra and 

Chris since the parenting plan was entered in 2012. Following the statement of facts is Chris's 

legal argument applying the case law regarding relocation to the facts of this case. 

B. THE PARTIES 

(I.) EVAN 

Evan will start first grade this fall and he will celebrate his 7t h  birthday in September. 

(See Ex. B, Photos of Evan.) Throughout his young life, he has spent substantial time in New 

York, and when they stay in Las Vegas, Evan begs to go to New York. When he is in New 

York he is engaged in numerous activities: ice hockey and skating, baseball, swimming, family 

events, and church on Sundays. Evan has friends from the sports complex where the hockey 

program that Chris runs is located. Indeed, Evan's best friend lives in New York. (See Ex. C, 

Drawing by Evan's Best Friend). 2  Evan and his friends go to each other's houses to play, and 

they have the occasional sleep over. 

Although he is only finishing Kindergarten, Evan has proven himself to be a solid 

student His first semester report card shows that he met or exceeded expectations in all 

subjects, except for language and writing. (Ex. K at DEFT 285.) In those topics, he was 

approaching expectations and his teacher, Ms. Rengel, noted some daily exercises that could 

help Evan improve even more. (M) Chris worked diligently on these with Evan during his 

timeshare. (Ex. D, Extra work Chris did with Evan throughout the year.) 

2  It is not lost on Chris that this is a representation by Evan' s friend Neil that Evan is Neil's 
best friend, but it goes to show how close these two are even though they live over 2,500 miles 
apart, and Chris is confident, if asked, Evan would tell you Neil is his best friend. 
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1 	Just prior to Evan entering Kindergarten, Chris returned Evan from his August 

2 timeshare and stayed in Las Vegas to work with Sandra to get Evan ready for his first day of 

3 school, and Chris was here for the first day. Chris participates as a volunteer at the school most 

4 days when he is in town. Evan's uncle Peter often volunteers too. Additionally, Chris has 

5 made a few special trips or stayed past his routine timeshare to be here for various school 

6 events, including 'Native American Day' in November and the 'Winter Party' in December, a 

7 spring-time fun run, and the end of year celebration. In short, Chris has made extraordinary 

8 efforts to be active in his son's life. 

	

9 	Chris maintained frequent contact with Evan's teacher and principal to ensure he is 

10 progressing academically and socially, and to ensure that Evan's New York timeshares were not 

11 interfering with his progress. At the beginning of the school year, Chris approached Ms. 

12 Rengel and Principal Hungerford about the possibility of continuing his ten day timeshares with 

13 Evan in New York throughout Kindergarten. They did not dismiss the idea out of hand, but 

14 instead talked about the importance of keeping up with the curriculum, behavior, and 

15 social/emotional concerns, as well as attendance. (See e.g., Ex. E, Emails Between the Parties, 

16 the Parenting Coordinator, and the School at DEFT 6, 8, 26, 31, 85, 113, 137.) Before his 

17 visits, Chris obtained Evan's assignments for the days Evan would miss, and they stayed on top 

18 of the curriculum. His grades remained good and, when asked about his progress, neither 

19 Evan's teacher nor the principal expressed any concerns about Evan's academic progress or 

20 behavior. (See e.g., Ex. E, at DEFT 78-79, 94-95, 113) On the contrary, in January, Ms. 

21 Rengel said that Evan is "right where I expect him to be at this point in time." (Ex. E, at DEFT 

22 78-79.) Mid-year and again in March, Principal Hungerford confirmed to Chris, that as long as 

23 Evan maintained the same level of achievement he was in no danger of being held back for 

24 absences (or any other reason). (See Ex. E at DEFT 94-95, 113]. Specifically, in March, 

25 Principal Hungerford wrote to Chris, inter alia: 

	

26 	 Evan is making excellent progress 	. . He is a pleasant, well- 
mannered young man. . . . Iknow we discussed retention concerns 

	

27 	 at the onset of the school year due to the visitation agreement, and 
the fact that Evan would be absent due to his traveling to New York. 

	

28 	 However, at this time, if we were considering retaining Evan for 
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Kindergarten, we would reach out to you and Evan's mom to 
discuss our plan for retention. Evan is making the necessary growth 
academically and socially to be promoted to grade one. 

(Ex. E at DEFT 113.) Despite all of this positive feedback, Sandra objected to Chris 

continuing his timeshare with Evan in New York as soon as Evan began Kindergarten, even 

though the Parenting Coordinator initially acknowledged and wrote to both Sandra and Chris 

that: 

[K]indergarten is not required in Nevada and, therefore, the same 
restrictions that would apply to 1-12 grades, including academic 
achievement, are not necessarily applicable. . . . Therefore, it is my 
hope to reach an appropriate resolution, such as an agreement on the 
number of allowed days for the New York travel. 

(Ex. E at DEFT 8.) No agreement was ever reached, and eventually the Parenting Coordinator 

reduced the issue to a number of days of allowed absences, even though Principal Hungerford 

made it clear that Evan was in no danger of being held back for that reason, or any other. If, as 

stated by the Parenting Coordinator, 'academic achievement' was not necessarily a barrier to 

Evan continuing his timeshares with Chris in New York, then surely absenteeism was not a time 

barrier either, particularly in the face of the academic and social success demonstrated by Evan 

and reported by his teacher and principal. Therefore, the Parenting Coordinator employed an 

expedient resolution as opposed to one that balanced the weightier factors of Evan's best 

interests, such as maintaining the connection and bond with his New York family and friends 

and the extracurricular activities in which he participates there, whereas he is engaged in no 

extracurricular activities in Las Vegas. This is not intended as a criticism of the Parenting 

Coordinator; Chris understands that as long as Sandra was not budging on Evan missing school 

to go to New York, the Parenting Coordinator's hands were tied. Chris knows she did the best 

she could in a difficult situation. Chris always knew and acknowledged that monthly 

timeshares with Evan in New York could not continue once Evan entered the first grade. (E.g., 

Ex. E at 94.) Naturally, Chris wanted to squeeze out every last opportunity to have Evan in 

New York, but Sandra takes every opportunity to minimize Evan's time in New York. 

(ii.) SAND 

Sandra was born and raised in Chicago. (Paglini Report at p. 13.) She completed 
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highschool and two to three semesters of college, but does not have a degree. (Id.) Sandra 

worked in retail, she waitressed and bartended, and when Chris met Sandra she was working as 

a model in trade shows and nightclubs. (Id.) After they broke up she worked as a card dealer 

for a time. (Id. at p. 14.) Sandra allegedly started a business with some other models in 2011, 

but Chris is informed and believes that business is defunct. (Id.) He does not know what she 

does for work now. 

Sandra's household consists of her own parents, Rebecca and Daniel, and Sandra's 

older children, Desmond and Kayla. She has a sister with two children who are 14/15 and 8/9 

years old. Chris is informed and believes that Sandra's house was foreclosed on in or about 

June 2014, but she continues to reside there. (See Ex. F, Judgment filed Jun. 13, 2014.) 

In a recent email exchange, Chris asked Sandra if she would reconsider enrolling Evan 

in Challenger School, entirely at Chris's expense. 3  (Ex. E at DEFT 139.) Sandra's response, 

in relevant part, was: "I do not intend on changing schools for Evan unless I move out of the 

district." (Id.) This prompted Chris to ask, "As far as moving outside your district, you have 

made mention that you may relocate to Chicago. Is that still an option? If not, what would take 

you outside the district in Las Vegas that you are currently in? This would require Evan 

attending a different school anyhow. ." (Id.) Sandra, responded, "As far as my 'move' you 

speak of 	I'm not certain at this time about out of state moving. Here in Vegas, when it 

happens, my move will remain in Summerlin area and district of my children's schools." (Id at 

DEFT 138, ellipsis in the original.) However, Sandra's response is inconsistent with her own 

statement that suggested the possibility of moving out of the district and non-responsive to 

Chris's question based on her own statement. 

(iii.) CHRIS 

Chris was born and raised in New York. Chris and his twin brother, Peter, own and 

operate Ferraro Brothers Hockey, which includes a youth hockey program and clinics for 

3  They explored the possibility of Evan attending Challenger last year before he started 
kindergarten, but Sandra refused. 

8 

   AA00206



4-1 
4-4 

4-1 

ce) 

H
U

T
C

 H
I

S 
O

N
  

A
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N
A

L
 L

L
C

  

P
E

C
C

O
L

E
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 P

A
R

K 

1
0
0

5
0

 W
E

S
T

 A
LT

A
 D

R
IV

E
,  

S
U

IT
E

 Z
O

O
 

LA
S

  V
E

G
A

S
,  

N
V

 8
91

4
5
 

1 players of all ages from pee wee through college. They are both retired professional hockey 

2 players. Chris played from 1995 to 2009, in the 1\ ational and American Hockey Leagues, other 

3 minor leagues, and on the U.S. Olympic team. The Ferraro brothers are well known and 

4 respected in their community which explains, in part, their successful business, which focuses 

5 on teaching youth the skills and discipline to succeed in all areas of life. 

	

6 	After Chris met Sandra and they decided to live together, he played for the Las Vegas 

7 Wranglers in 2007. The Wranglers play in a rough league; the NHL and AHL are gentlemanly 

8 by comparison, and Chris sustained the worst injuries of his life playing for the Wranglers. 

9 After suffering a concussion, followed by a broken leg, he decided to retire from professional 

10 hockey, a decision that was further motivated by becoming a father. Chris then began pursuing 

11 other career opportunities, including Ferraro Brother's Hockey. 4  

	

12 	The Fen.aros are a tight family. Chris, his twin brother Peter, and their mother (Evan's 

13 grandmother), Diane, live in the house where Chris and Peter grew up in Long Island. Evan's 

14 grandfather, Peter Sr., and his wife live nearby in Montauk. Diane and Peter Sr. enjoy a good 

15 relationship despite their divorce. Also living in the area are Evan's uncle Mike and Mike's 

16 wife, Michelle, and their three daughters, Ashley, Chelsea and Dominque who are 25, 22 and 

17 16, respectively. There is still more extended family living nearby whom they see several times 

18 a year, and with whom Evan has a relationship. Additionally, Evan has another aunt Michelle 

19 (Chris's sister) who lives in 1\ ew York and Los Angeles, with whom Evan is also very close. 

	

20 	The Ferraro home in Long Island is modest. It is approximately 3,000 square feet, 

21 which includes a finished basement. There are 4 bedrooms and 3 baths. Evan has his own 

22 room upstairs. (Ex. B at DEFT 223-229.) Depending on the school selected for Evan, Chris 

23 

24 
4  Currently, Ferraro Brothers Hockey operates from Twin Rinks Ice Center, in which Chris 

and Peter have a minority ownership interest. The majority owners of Twin Rinks Ice Center 
recently voted to file Chapter 11 bankruptcy on June 8, 2015. Neither Chris nor Peter participate 
in the financial management of the Center. Whether the bankruptcy is approved or not, Chris 

27 expects that Ferraro Brothers Hockey will fon a relationship with the new owners to allow Ferraro 
Brothers Hockey to continue its operations in place. Either way, Ferraro Brothers Hockey will 
continue. 

25 

26 

28 
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1 may move so that they are closer to Evan's school and the hockey center. 

2 C. EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES FOR EVAN IN NEW YO 

	

3 	If Evan is allowed to relocate to New York, the school leading the list so far is Portledge 

4 School. Portledge has an enrollment of less than 500 students serving grades pre-K through 12. 

5 (Ex. G, Portledge School Web Pages at DEFT 262-263.) The lower, middle and upper schools 

6 are housed in separate buildings and the student teacher ratio is 7:1 or less. (Id.) Portledge 

7 students go on to some of the countries' best colleges and universities. (Id. at DEFT 264-265.) 

8 It is Chris's hope that Evan will go to college. Chris left college to play professional hockey, 

9 and while he is grateful for the opportunities that his hockey career afforded him, education is 

10 his top priority for Evan, including a variety of experiences to allow Evan a range of choices. 

	

11 	Alternatively, Evan could attend his local public school in the Rocky Point School 

12 District. The elementary school has approximately 'A the number of students of Evan' s current 

13 school.' The overwhelming majority of teachers in the district hold master's level degrees or 

14 better. 6  Throughout the district, students are doing well as evidenced by general performance 

15 indicators tracked by the New State Department of Education, and the 2013 and 2014 

16 graduation rates from Rocky Point High School were 94% and 95%, respectively.' In 2013, 

5  Rocky Point's elementary school, Frank J. Carasiti Elementary School's enrollment for 
2013-2014 was 691 students and houses grades K-2. (Ex. H at DEFT 267, School Enrollment Data 
accessed June 4, 2015 available at http://clata.nysed ..gov.) Grades 3-5 are located in the Joseph A. 
Edgar Intermediate School; enrollment for 2013-2014 was 746 students. (Id. at DEFT 271.) By 
contrast Linda B. Givens Elementary School in Las Vegas houses pre-K through grade 5 and held 
1,103 students. (Ex I at DEFT 277, School Enrollment Data accessed June 4, 2015 at 
http://www.nevadareportcard.com .) The website, www.nevadareportcard.com  is the website of 
the Nevada Department of Education. Student teacher ratios at the Rocky Point elementary and 
intermediate schools appear comparable to those at Givens Elementary. 

6  Ex. H at DEFT 269, 272, Teacher Qualification Data accessed June 4, 2015 available at 
http://.data.nysed.gov.) 

Ex. H at DEFT 274, 276, Graduation Data accessed June 4, 2015 available at 
http://data.nysed.gov/gradrate.php?year=2014&instid-- -800000037614.  

17 
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90% of Rocky Point Graduates went on to college.' Generally speaking, New York schools as 

a whole rank 18th  in the nation while Nevada schools rank 50t h. 9  

Chris anticipates a typical week for Evan in New York would be as follows: weekdays, 

Evan will be in school from approximately 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m., after school a snack and 

homework, followed by an extracurricular activity (e.g., hockey, soccer, music lesson, currently 

Evan is learning guitar, religion class, etc.) and/or playtime with friends, then dinner and finish 

any remaining homework, followed by some down time before bed (e.g., reading or occasional 

TV), then bedtime by 9:00 p.m. On the weekends, Evan will likely have games on Saturday 

(hockey, soccer, etc.), and there is church on Sunday; around those activities, play dates and 

sleep overs with friends, trips to the park, movies and family get-togethers, any homework not 

completed Friday afternoon will be completed and/or reviewed Sunday afternoon. 

C. PARENTING PLAN 

Despite living in New York, Chris has continued to maintain the visitation schedule 

established in the parenting plan. The parenting plan established Chris's routine timeshare as 

follows: 

Father's Residential Timeshare: Until such time as Father permanently relocates 
to the Las Vegas, Nevada area, the parties shall maintain a monthly schedule which 
permits Father to exercise his timeshare for a ten (10) day uninterrupted period at 
the end of each month with the parties' minor child. The Father's timeshare period 
shall begin upon the release from the child' s schooling program on the third Friday 
of each month and continue for a period of ten (10) days, when the Father will 
return the child to school before the first morning bell. If the parties' child is not 
in school or school is otherwise not in session, the Father's timeshare will begin on 

See Ex. H, Rocky Point High School, School Profile accessed Jun. 4, 2015 available at 
http://www . 
rockypointufsd.org/Assets/High_School  Documents/schoolprofile.pdf?t---635352347891630000.) 

9  Kids Count 2014 Data Book, State Trends in Child Well-Being, Annie E. Casey Found., 
Baltimore, 	M.D. 	2014 	at 	p. 	45, 	available 	at 
http ://www. aec f. org/m/re  sourc edo c/aecf-2014kids countdatabook-2014.pdf. The education 
indicators used by the Annie E. Casey Foundation to establish these rankings are: (1) children not 
attending preschool; (2) fourth graders not proficient in reading; (3) eighth graders not proficient 
in math; and (4) high school students not graduating on time. (Kids Count at p. 52.) The 
Foundations data sources for the indicators are the U. S. Census Bureau, American Community 
Survey and the U.S. Department of Education, National Center for Education Statistics. (Id.) 
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Friday at 3:00 p.m. or upon mutual written agreement (via email) of the parties, 
when the Father shall pick the child up from a neutral location and continue for ten 
(10) days, when he shall return the child the Mother at a neutral location at 9:00 
a.m. or upon mutual written agreement (via email) of the parties. 

(Parenting Plan at 5:22-6:8.) The parenting plan further provided that: 

New York Visits: The parties agree that the Father may exercise his residential time 
with the minor child in New York until the child begins Kindergarten in the Clark 
County School District. At that time, all regular timeshares less than three (3) days 
will occur in Las Vegas. For regular timeshares that are four (4) days or more, the 
Father's timeshare may occur in New York at the Father's election and expense. 

(Ex. Parenting Plan at 6:20-25.) 

The parenting plan also included a fairly standard holiday schedule whereby the parties 

split and alternate holidays every other year, and they divide the summer months nearly equally 

with Chris having Evan for "a two week period (14 days) of uninterrupted vacation time in 

June, July and August . . ." (Parenting Plan at Ex. I.) Consequently, in 2013, Chris exercised 

143 days of visitation, in 2014 he exercised 154 days, and in 2015 he will exercise 

approximately 138 days. (Ex. J, Timeshare Spreadsheets.) This puts his percentage timeshare 

at 38 to 42% of the year. (Id.) 

Chris and Sandra have experienced periods of cooperation since the 2012 parenting plan 

was entered. During the Christmas holiday in 2013, Sandra, Desmond, and Kayla came to New 

York for part of Evan's timeshare with Chris. Twice, Chris has included Desmond on Evan's 

timeshares in New York when Sandra was having difficulties with Desmond, and Sandra 

sought Chris's assistance with him. In the summer of 2014, before Evan started kindergarten, 

Sandra, Desmond, and Kayla once again came to New York for part of Chris's timeshare with 

Evan. Things remained friendly between Chris and Sandra as Evan began kindergarten last fall, 

but deteriorated shortly thereafter, and Chris is not even sure why. 

0. PARENTING DIFFERENCES AND CO-PARENTING CHALLENGES 

Chris will be the first to admit that he was a terrible co-parent in the beginning, and not 

that it excuses him, but Sandra was no better. Despite having two older children, Chris is 

informed and believes that Sandra never really had to co-parent with either Desmond or Kayla's 

father. It is Chris's understanding that Desmond's father is not around much, if at all; Kayla's 
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father exercises limited visitation, and both men leave all legal custody-type decisions to 

Sandra. 

Even though both Chris and Sandra have been through 19-hour co-parenting programs, w  

to this day, Sandra considers Chris's efforts to co-parent, harassment. In the email exchange in 

which he asked her to reconsider Evan's enrollment in Challenger School, she stated, "I would 

appreciate no further harassment concerning this topic that has been addressed on more 

occasions than necessary." (Ex. E at DEFT 138.) There had been no discussion since they 

toured the school in the summer of 2014, and Sandra declined to enroll Evan there for 

Kindergarten at Chris's expense. This year, Chris emailed Sandra on May 13 th, asking her if 

she would reconsider Evan's enrollment there for the first grade. (Id. at DEFT 139.) She 

responded on May 14th, that her feelings were the same and argued that Evan made friends and 

enjoyed Givens Elementary, that Givens is rated among CCSD' s top schools, and that she had 

no intention of changing schools unless she moved from the district. (Id.) This prompted Chris 

to ask about the possibility of her moving and point out that if she was contemplating a move, 

Evan would have to make new friends anyway and the private school has more to offer. (Id.) 

This is what Sandra considered harassment; Chris considers it co-parenting, but he let the 

discussion drop there. (See, id at DEFT 138-139.) 

It is worth noting that in this same email exchange, Sandra claimed that: 

Evan is going to be participating in a full extracurricular schedule 
after school starting in the 1St grade. He will be able to attend these 
activities regularly as he will be on a more consistent schedule than 
he has been. Most of these activities have already been put in place 
for moving into the 2015/2016 school year. 

(Ex. E at DEFT 139.) Sandra's statement — that activities have been put in place for Evan for 

the 2015/2016 school year — is curious because Sandra has not approached Chris about 

enrolling Evan in a single extracurricular activity as would be her responsibility under the 

parenting plan. Provision 1.8 of the parenting plan states, "The parents shall consult with each 

1°  As a consequence of the parenting evaluation, both parties were ordered to complete 19- 
hour co-parenting classes. Sandra completed hers through UNLV and Chris completed his on-line 
(the on-line program was selected by the Parenting Coordinator). 

- 13- 

   AA00211



P
E

C
C

O
L
E

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
  P

A
R

K  

LA
S

  V
E

G
A

S
,  

N
V

 8
9

1
4

5
 

1
0
0
8

0
 W

E
S
T

 A
L

T
A

 D
R

IV
E

,  
S

U
IT

E
 2

0
0

 

A
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 L
L
C

 

other regarding any extracurricular activity which might affect the child's access to the other 

parent." A "full extracurricular schedule after school" would necessarily affect Chris's 

timeshare; therefore, before she "put in place" activities for the 2015/2016 school year, Sandra 

would need to consult Chris, and she has not. 

Chris will also admit that he has had moments of defensiveness in the last year, 

especially when Evan started Kindergarten and Sandra said he could not go to New York. Chris 

continues to try to improve his communications with Sandra. For the most part, as the Court 

will see in his emails, his communications are polite and to the point. Sandra on the other hand, 

continues to make snide comments, distort facts and refuses most everything Chris requests. In 

another recent email exchange, Chris was attempting to confirm the summer visitation dates. 

The Summer Vacation provision of the parenting plan states: 

The father will be entitled to a two week period (14 days) of 
uninterrupted vacation time in June, July and August; these two 
week periods shall be exercised in lieu of Father's regular timeshare 
periods in the months of June, July, August. The father's timeshare 
shall begin the second Friday in the month of June, July and August 
and continue for a period of 14 days. 

(Parenting Plan at Ex. 1, page 3 (emphasis added).) Chris proposed his summer 2015 timeshare 

occur as follows: June 12 to June 26; July 10 to July 24; and August 7 to August 21. (Ex. E at 

DEFT 149.) The June and July start dates are the second Friday of those months. August 7t h  is 

the first Friday of the month; however, school starts August 24t 1 ; therefore, if Chris's timeshare 

did not start until August 14t h, he would not receive two weeks of uninterrupted vacation time. 

Importantly, moving Chris's timeshare one week early would still result in Sandra receiving 

two full consecutive weeks with Evan between the end of July and the beginning of August. 

The piece that Chris forgot was that Sandra's birthday is August 7t h, but he has no problem 

moving his timeshare to the 8t h. Rather than give Chris the benefit of the doubt of an honest 

mistake, Sandra responded in relevant part as follows: 

[S]ummer 'timeshare' is not considered vacation time. . . just 
because school starts earlier doesn't mean your days change around 
that. Evan was with me during the first day of school last year, and 
this year it will fall in your timeshare. The days of your timeshare 
in summer are intended for you to spend additional time with Evan. 
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You will need to make appropriate arrangements to do so around 
your timeshare. In addition.... [sic] It interferes with my birthday 
(which you are ware of). 

(Ex. E at DEFT 147.) Chris reminded Sandra that summer vacation is expressly defined as 

uninterrupted vacation and assured her that the start date of August 7t h  was not intentionally 

done to deprive her of Evan's company on her birthday, and he revised the proposed schedule 

to August 8 to August 22. (Id.) Sandra replied again, continuing to insist, contrary to the 

express language of the agreement, that summer visitation was not "uninterrupted vacation" and 

quipped: 

I'm sorry that you feel that your sons [sic] schooling is such a 
burden on your 'timeshares' with him. Most of my timeshare is 
spent during his schooling with the exception of weekends. This is 
the responsibility of a parent. I will continue to follow the 
stipulation that was set in place almost 3 years ago now. Otherwise 

can have my attorneys handle this situation in regards to how the 
stipulation reads. 

(Id. at DEFT 146.) This statement is unfair on a number of levels. As explained throughout 

this statement of facts, Chris is devoted to Evan's education. Sandra follows the parenting plan, 

or not, as it suits her. Indeed, when the parties were getting along as Evan started Kindergarten, 

she allowed Chris extra days around the beginning of school that were not technically his 

timeshare to spend with Evan, and they were both there for Evan's first day of school. 

In light of Sandra's comment, Chris's latest proposal was that he have Evan August 8t h  

to the August 22n d  in New York, return to Las Vegas on August 22n d, but he would keep Evan, 

as Sandra suggested until August 28t h. (Ex. E at DEFT 166-167.) Chris would be responsible 

to get Evan to school for the entire first week from Monday, August 24t h  to Friday, August 28th, 

but he expected that Sandra would also want to be there for Evan's First Day of school. (Id.) 

Chris also suggested that if Sandra wanted to spend some time with Evan between August 23r d  

and 27th, he would accommodate her. (Id.) Not surprisingly, Sandra rejected that idea too. 

(Ex. E at 165-166.) If Evan is permitted to relocate to New York, then the August timeshare 

would necessarily change to give Sandra more time in the summer months, and Chris would 

invite Sandra to come to New York for Evan's first day of school there (it is unlikely to 

coincide with Kayla's first day in Las Vegas). 

-15- 
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1 	The one thing that is very clear in all of this is Sandra's refusal to work with Chris to 

2 ensure that Evan maintains a bond, not just with his Chris but with his New York family, 

3 friends, and life. That is the real reason why it was important that Chris have that time at the 

4 end of the summer, especially if the motion for relocation is not granted. 

	

5 	There are plenty of times when Chris capitulates to Sandra. When she put her foot 

6 down on Chris taking Evan to New York if it meant Evan would miss another day of 

7 Kindergarten, he very reluctantly capitulated, and his March, April and May timeshares were 

8 exercised in Las Vegas. When Sandra declined to reconsider enrolling Evan in Challenger 

9 School, Chris let the issue drop. When she said no to Evan participating in the filming of a 

10 demo reel that Chris and Peter have been approached to film for a prospective reality TV show, 

11 he let that drop too. He did not let up on Evan's baptism, although he did not badger her either. 

12 Happily, they have finally agreed to a date for Evan's Baptism, but it has taken over three years 

13 to do it. 

	

14 	Despite Chris's capitulations and mostly appropriate efforts at co-parenting, Sandra 

15 lodges a complaint with the parenting coordinator nearly every time Chris communicates with 

16 her and has a timeshare with Evan. Recently, Chris received an email from the Parenting 

17 Coordinator, prompted by a call from Sandra with a laundry list of allegations and complaints. 

18 (See Ex. E at DEFT 150-151.) Rather than contact Chris for his side of the story, the Parenting 

19 Coordinator sent a chastising email. (See id.) 

	

20 	The Parenting Coordinator began by saying she received a call from Sandra "about the 

21 lack of co-parenting that is occurring." (Id.) However, when one reads the emaits on the 

22 subjects that Sandra expressed concerns, what is actually occurring is denial and protest by 

23 Sandra of any and all requests that Chris makes, and scrutiny and micro-management of Chris's 

24 timeshare with Evan. The first issue was school attendance. As explained, Chris capitulated to 

25 Sandra and exercised his last three timeshares in Las Vegas. A couple of times, Chris took 

26 Evan to Los Angeles on the weekend where they stayed with Evan's aunt, and Chris told 

27 Sandra that he and Evan were there, but Sandra became upset that he did not tell her how they 

28 got there, whether by plane or car. (Ex. E at DEFT 128-129.) Chris has rarely, if ever, 

-16- 
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communicated his mode of transportation for a short trip, and neither does Sandra. Indeed, 

2 Sandra has taken Evan outside of Nevada without telling Chris. Sandra demanded every flight 

3 itinerary from Chris for 2015. (Ex. E at DEFT 128.) Sandra has every flight itinerary between 

4 Las Vegas and New York, and the trip Evan made from Las Vegas to Orlando, Florida; 

5 emailing the itineraries is how Chris communicates Evan's arrivals and departures to Sandra. 

6 (See i.e., Ex. E at DEFT 64, 177.) 

	

7 	In April, Chris informed Sandra that Evan was not feeling well and he kept him from 

8 school; Sandra proceeded to chide Chris and complain to the Parenting Coordinator about Evan 

9 missing some school during Chris's timeshare in Las Vegas. (Ex. E at DEFT 127, 150.) Sadly, 

10 Chris felt compelled to email Evan's teacher to confirm her awareness that Evan was not 

11 feeling 100%. (Ex. E at DEFT 137.) By the way, all of Evan's absences during Chris's 

12 timeshares are excused; Evan has two un-excused absences during his mother's timeshare, 

13 Sandra never told Chris that she kept Evan out of school or, apparently, bothered to notify the 

14 school of the reason for the absence so that it might be excused. (Ex. K, Evan's attendance 

15 record.) 

	

16 	Next, the parenting coordinator addresses Sandra's concerns about Challenger and tells 

17 Chris what he already knows and has acknowledged to Sandra and the parenting coordinator 

18 previously, which is that if Sandra says "no," then Even will remain in public school, and Chris 

19 cannot take Evan out of school for extended periods when first grade begins. (Ex. E at DEFT 

20 150; see also DEFT 2, 94.) Sandra seems to think that Chris wants Evan in public school 

21 because he could then remove him to spend more time in New York. (See Ex. E at DEFT 150.) 

22 The idea is nonsense; the whole point of Challenger School is that it is more challenging. Chris 

23 knows Evan's attendance in the first grade, and beyond, is non-negotiable. (See Ex. E at DEFT 

24 94.) 

	

25 	Similarly, Chris knows Sandra's consent is required for Evan to participate in a demo 

26 reel for a reality TV show, and he already dropped it. It should be noted though, that Sandra 

27 had Evan participate in an ad, without first obtaining Chris's permission. 

	

28 	There was also a complaint that Evan has no structure when he is with Chris. (Ex. E at 
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DEFT 150.) This simply is not true. As can be seen in Sandra's emails, she constantly 

2 interferes with and desires to micro-manage Chris's timeshare. (See e.g., Ex. E at DEFT 127- 

3 128, 150-151, 181-182.) It has become intolerable, and her interference and micro- 

4 management is another fact that supports Chris's request for relocation. 

	

5 	Next, Sandra complains that having Chris's family members at Evan's school events 

6 creates an uncomfortable environment for her; therefore, she requests that Chris attend school 

7 functions by himself. (Ex. E at DEFT 151.) This request is lost on Chris. School events are for 

8 the kids, the kids should be supported by as many of their family members as possible. Chris 

9 would welcome Sandra bringing her own family members to Evan's events so that he feels that 

10 they are all together behind him. More recently, Sandra alleged Evan was uncomfortable at his 

11 Kindergarten graduation because her family (mother, father and Kayla) were there as was Chris 

12 and his brother Peter. Chris did not perceive it that way. Chris noted that Evan was 

13 disappointed about the end of the school year, which he enjoyed a lot and would be missing his 

14 friends the next day. 

	

15 	Finally, there was a complaint about the tooth fairy. (Ex. E at DEFT151.) Yes, the 

16 tooth fairy. Here, Chris came under fire because Evan lost two teeth during his recent 

17 timeshare with Chris, and the Tooth Fairy brought Evan $115.00, a $100 bill and fifteen $1 

18 bills. The Parenting Coordinator, not knowing that the $100.00 bill was for Evan's college 

19 fund-piggy bank in New York, admonished Chris that "it is not reasonable to give a 6 year old 

20 $100 for a tooth -- this sets up unrealistic expectations." (Id.) Sandra admitted giving her 

21 children $20 per tooth, which is in fact greater than the $7.50 per tooth that Evan actually 

22 received from Chris. (Id.) 

	

23 	Chris has appreciated the Parenting Coordinators efforts, and he understands that both 

24 he and Sandra have been challenging clients to work with, but what he perceives is happening 

25 now is that Sandra calls the parenting coordinator, rants about the injustices she perceives are 

26 being perpetrated against her (although there are not any) and then the Parenting Coordinator, 

27 understandably loathe to call Chris and get an earful from him too, fires off emails like Exhibit 

28 E at DEFT 150-151 181-182 and makes it appear that Chris is the bad guy. 
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It is also telling that most of these communications occur during Chris's timeshare. 

Sandra is generally not stirring the pot when it is her own timeshare. For example, on May 29, 

2015, it was field day at Evan's school and Chris's timeshare. All parents were invited, and 

both Chris and Evan expected Sandra to attend, but she did not. That afternoon, Chris received 

an email from Sandra stating that she received a photo of Evan taken that day purporting to 

show him with a "pretty good size cut, swelling and bruise on his forehead." She also alleged: 

I also spoke with another parent who said their child questioned Evan about 
what happened and his response was I do not want to talk about it'. They were 
concerned about his response. This response doesn't sound like something Evan 
would say, especially to one of his good friends. 

(Ex. E at DEFT 155-156.) Sandra did not name the parent or the 'good friend.' In point of fact, 

Evan had a terrific time during field day and he sustained no injuries. (Ex. B at DEFT 218 

(Evan is the child in the middle of two other boys; see also Ex. E at DEFT 158-159.) 

This sounds like the old Sandra, trying to build a bogus allegation against Chris. Chris 

had no intention of asking for sole legal custody, but after this email and the Parenting 

Coordinator emails, he is not so sure that a court would not find it is warranted. In response to 

Sandra's email, Chris emailed Sandra that Evan had no injuries. (Ex. E at DEFT 155.) He 

offered to set up a FaceTime session that night so she could confirm this for herself, and he sent 

her a video of Evan from field day. (Id. at DEFT 155, 157.) Sandra did not take Chris up on 

his offer to FaceTime with Evan that evening. Subsequently, Sandra sent the photos she 

received, and arguably there is a shadow that may look like a bruise or a cut, but the allegation 

that another child asked Evan what happened is clearly contrived because there was no injury. 

Sadly, the harassment did not stop there. Sandra made another call and sent another 

email to the Parenting Coordinator about a number of things that allegedly occurred during and 

after Chris's May timeshare. (Ex. E at DEFT 181-182.) Sandra complained about Chris and 

his brother going to Evan's school during lunch. (Id. at DEFT 182.) As explained above, 

sometimes Chris and, occasionally his brother too, will go to the school on the lunch hour to 

help out with and play with all of the kids, not just Evan. The school administration and staff 

welcome them, and the kids love it. But, per her email to the Parenting Coordinator, Sandra 
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heard about Chris's lunchtime visit from a parent, and Sandra asked Evan if it was true. (Id at 

DEFT 181.) If Sandra had a problem with this, Sandra should have addressed this with Chris, 

not Evan. Sandra is the one who placed Evan in a position of feeling like his dad, and maybe 

he too, was doing something bad. Therefore, the person contributing the anxiety she reports 

that Evan exhibits — and that Evan only exhibits when he is with Sandra — is Sandra. 

Next Sandra alleges "lying has become a big issue with Evan." (Fix. E at DEFT 181.) 

Chris has no problems with Evan lying, nor does he tell Evan to lie to his mother or anyone 

else. It is true that Chris has said, "your mom does not need to know everything." (See id.) 

However, he did not mean it in the sense that Evan should lie to his mother, and Chris does not 

think that Evan took it that way either. Indeed, that Evan did not take it that way, is evidenced 

by the fact that Evan did not lie to his mother. (See id.) When asked a direct question, he told 

her the truth. (See id.) 

Chris lived with Sandra long enough to know that when Evan returns to Sandra, he is 

probably thoroughly questioned about what happened from the moment he left to the moment 

he returned. Chris had no notion that visiting the school at lunch time, even though it was 

Sandra's timeshare, would present a problem. But apparently Evan did. When Chris showed 

up, Evan expressed concern that his mom would be mad because it was not his timeshare. It 

was in response to this concern, that Chris said, "Hey buddy, your morn does not need to know 

everything." 

Finally, the Tooth Fairy came up again. Sandra alleges that Kayla asked Evan where the 

$100 bill was that he got from the tooth fairy. (Fix. E at DEFT 181.) She went on to allege that 

Evan said, "I begged, and begged my daddy to bring it with me and he said I couldn't because 

someone would steal it from me in our house." (Id.) Chris absolutely, did not say this. As 

admitted earlier, there was a time when Chris and Sandra struggled to co-parent, and they 

behaved abominably to each other and their respective families, but that is a thing of the past. 

What is curious is that Chris is always asking Evan: do you want to take this, that or the other 

thing to Las Vegas, and he always says no. Evan has reached the age where he has learned to 

play "both ends against the middle," and when Chris sees this, he puts the kibosh on it. If 
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Sandra does not learn to recognize this behavior and work with Chris, instead of always against 

him as is clearly seen in the email exchanges of the last week alone, they will have no peace. 

2. LAW & ARGUMENT 

Pursuant to Chris and Sandra's stipulated parenting plan, drafted by parenting 

coordinator Margaret Pickard, Esq., and filed November 30, 2012, they share joint physical 

custody. Chris's routine time share with Evan is ten days per month. Notably, this parenting 

plan was drafted well after Rivero v. River°, 125 Nev. 410, 216 P.3d 213 (2009). 

A. CUSTODY MODIFICATION GENERALLY - NRS 125510 9  RIVER° 
AND BLUESTEIN 

The court may modify or vacate a child custody order at any time during a child's 

minority as appears in the child's best interest. (NRS 125.510.) When considering a motion to 

modify custody, the court must first determine the actual physical custody timeshare that is in 

effect, regardless of what was stated in the last child custody order. Rivero v. Rivero, 125 Nev. 

410, 430, 215 P. 3d 213, 227 (2009). Different tests apply to modify custody depending on the 

current custody arrangement. Joint physical custody may be modified or terminated if it is in 

the best interest of the child. Truax v. Truax, 110 Nev. 473, 874 P.2d 10 (1994). Primary 

physical may be modified only when "(1) there has been a substantial change in circumstances 

affecting the welfare of the child, and (2) the modification would serve the child's best 

interest." Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 153, 161 P. 3d 239, 244 (2007). However, the child's 

best interest must be the primary consideration for modifying custody and Rivero's 40—percent 

guideline shall serve as a tool in determining what custody arrangement is in the child's best 

interest." Bluestein v. Bluestein, 	Nev. 	, 345 P.3d 1044,1046 (2015). If a motion to 

modify child custody contains prima facie evidence of adequate cause to modify custody, the 

court must hold a hearing. Rooney V. Rooney, 109 Nev. 540, 543-544, 853 P.2d 123, 124-125 

(1993). A prima facie case is shown if: (1) the facts alleged are relevant grounds for 

modification; and (2) the evidence is not merely cumulative or impeaching. Id at p. 543. 

Here, the parties' post-Rivero parenting plan stated they would share joint legal and 

joint physical custody of Evan. ("Parenting Plan" at 2:4-5, 5:18-21.) Depending on how the 
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holidays fall in a given year, Chris exercises a little more or a little less than a 40% timeshare, 

2 but as stated in Bluestein, it is the best interest of the child that controls and Rivero's 40% 

3 guideline is merely a tool in detemiining what arrangement is in the child's best interest; 

4 therefore, the Court can and should find that the custody arrangement to this point is a joint 

5 physical custody arrangement. 

6 B. RELOCATION ANALYSIS - POTTER, SCHWAl?TZ, AND 
DRUCKMAN 

7 
The Nevada Supreme Court held in Potter v. Potter, 121 Nev. 613, 119 P.3d 1246 

8 
(2005): 

9 

10 

11 

12 

When a parent with joint physical custody of a child wishes to relocate outside of 
Nevada with the child, the parent must move for primary physical custody for the 
purposes of relocating. The district court must consider the motion for primary 
custody under the best interest of the child standard established for joint custody 
situations in NRS 125.510 and Truax v. Truax, 110 Nev 437, 874 P.2d 10 (1994). 

In considering this motion, the district court must determine whether the moving 
parent will be relocating outside of Nevada with the child if he or she obtains 
primary custody. The district court may also consider, among other factors, the 
locales of the parents and whether one parent had de facto primary custody of the 
child prior to the motion. The moving party has the burden of establishing that it is 
in the child's best interest to reside outside of Nevada with the moving parent as the 
primary physical custodian. The issue is whether it is in the best interest of the child 
to live with parent A in a different state or parent B in Nevada. 

17 Potter, supra at 618, 1249-50. 

18 	The Court further held in Schwartz v. Schwartz, 107 Nev. 378, 812 P.2d 1268 (1991), 

19 that a motion for relocation requires a threshold determination that an actual advantage will be 

20 realized by both the child and the custodial parent. Id. at 383. An actual advantage does not 

21 have to be economic or otherwise tangible, so long as the movant can demonstrate a sensible, 

22 good faith reason for the move. Jones v. Jones, 110 Nev. 1253, 885 P2d 563 (1994). If such 

23 an advantage is realized, then the Court shall consider the Schwartz factors as recently affirmed 

24 in Druckman v. Ruscitti: 

(1) the extent to which the move is likely to improve the quality of life for both the 
child[] and the custodial parent; (2) whether the custodial parent's motives are 
honorable, and not designed to frustrate or defeat visitation rights accorded to the 
noncustodial parent; (3) whether, if permission to remove is granted, the custodial 
parent will comply with any substitute visitation orders issued by the court; (4) 
whether the noncustodian's motives are honorable in resisting the motion for 
permission to remove, or to what extent, if any, the opposition is intended to secure 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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a financial advantage in the form of ongoing support obligations or otherwise; (5) 
whether, if removal is allowed, there will be a realistic opportunity for the 
noncustodial parent to maintain a visitation schedule that will adequately foster and 
preserve the parental relationship with the noncustodial parent. 

Druckman v. Ruscitti, 130 Nev. Adv. Op. 50, 327 P.3d 511, 515 (2014), rehig denied (Sept. 24, 

2014) citing Schwartz, 107 Nev. at 385-83. 

The Schwartz Court also held that the district courts would necessarily need to consider 

any number of sub-factors to assist the court in weighing and balancing the Schwartz factors, 

including but not necessarily limited to: 

(1) whether positive family care and support, including that of the extended family, 
will be enhanced; (2) whether housing and environmental living conditions will be 
improved; (3) whether educational advantages for the children will result; (4) 
whether the custodial parent's employment and income will improve; (5) whether 
special needs of a child, medical or otherwise, will be better served; and (6) 
whether, in the child's opinion, circumstances and relationships will be improved. 

Schwartz, 107 N ev. 378 at 383. 

B. THRESHOLD DETE INATION — SENSIBLE GOOD FAITH 
ASON FOR RELOCATION 

Chris already resides in New York; therefore, the focus here is on whether there is an 

advantage to Evan and good faith basis for Chris to seek Evan's relocation. The advantages to 

Evan are several. First, Evan will have as active a parent as a child could hope to have in their 

upbringing. Despite the distance, Chris has already shown himself to be actively involved in 

Evan's school, advocating and involving him in extra-curricular activities, and he will be able 

to do that daily if Evan moves to New York. Second, New York itself presents a number of 

opportunities, including, a large and extended family and friends with whom Evan already has 

relationships, world-class schools (both public and private), and a variety of extra-curricular 

activities, including sports, music, and church. 

Chris has tried to work with Sandra to provide Evan with educational and extra-

curricular opportunities here in Nevada, and she is not interested in facilitating these for Evan 

here. Without intending to disparage Sandra, the reality is she has two older children who she 

has not gone out of her way to involve in extra—curricular activities. Chris wants more for Evan 

and he is ready, willing and able to dedicate his time and resources to Evan in ways that Sandra 
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just does not. 

C. SCHWARTZ FACTORS 

(1) The extent to which the move is likely to improve the quality of life for both the 
child and the custodial parent. 

The extent and ways in which the move is likely to improve Evan's quality of life is 

discussed in the section immediately above, as well as in the statement of facts. Incidentally, 

the move will improve Chris's quality of life by reducing some of the expense he incurs to 

spend his timeshares in Las Vegas (he will still bear the expense for Evan's travel and the 

accompanying parent for Evan's visits in Las Vegas with Sandra). 

(2) Whether the custodial parent's motives are honorable, and not designed to 
frustrate or defeat visitation rights accorded to the non-custodial parent. 

Chris's motives are focused entirely on Evan's best interest, and Chris has set forth a 

proposed visitation plan to afford Evan and Sandra and her family reasonable alternative 

visitation, at Chris's expense. 

(3) Whether, if permission to remove is granted, the custodial parent will comply with 
any substitute visitation orders issued by the court. 

Chris will comply with substitute visitation orders. Despite his strong feelings and 

objective evidence that there was no logical reason for him to exercise his March, April and 

May timeshares in Las Vegas, he did it. Sandra may argue that Chris has not followed the strict 

terms of pick-up and drop-off times in the parenting plan, but Sandra ignores that the parenting 

plan also states that the parties are to be flexible to accommodate travel times that are in Evan's 

best interest, and Chris makes all travel arrangements are made with Evan's best interest in 

mind. 

(4) Whether the non-custodian's motives are honorable in resisting the motion for 
permission to remove, or to what extent, if any, the opposition is intended to secure 
a financial advantage in the form of ongoing support obligations or otherwise. 

Chris will address this factor in his reply when he knows the reasons for Sandra's 

objections to the change in custody and relocation. 

(5) Whether, if removal is allowed, there will be a realistic opportunity for the non- 
custodial parent to maintain a visitation schedule that will adequately foster and 
preserve the parental relationship with the non-custodial parent. 
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1 	There is a realistic opportunity for Sandra to maintain a visitation schedule that 

2 adequately fosters and preserves her relationship with Evan as set forth in Exhibit A, and for 

3 which Chris will pay the airfare costs. He further proposes that, until Evan is of an age to fly as 

4 an unaccompanied minor, that Sandra pick up Evan in New York, and Chris will pick him up in 

5 Las Vegas. 

6 
D. THE BEST INTE • ST OF THE CHILD 

An order for joint custody may be modified or terminated if the best interest of the child 

requires modification or termination. NRS 125.510(2). The best interest of the child standard 

is set forth in NRS 125.480(4), which states: 

In determining the best interest of the child, the court shall consider and set forth 
its specific findings concerning, among other things: 
(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity to form an 
intelligent preference as to his or her custody. 
(b) Any nomination by a parent or a guardian for the child. 
(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent associations and 
a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 
(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the child. 
(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 
(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 
(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 
(I) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 
(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of the child. 
(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has engaged in an 

act of domestic violence against the child, a parent of the child or any other person 
residing with the child. 
(1) Whether either parent or any other person seeking custody has committed any 
act of abduction against the child or any other child. 

Applying the best interest factors to this case, Evan is not of sufficient age for the Court 

to consider any preference he may have. Although Sandra has followed the parenting plan, and at 

times has even allowed Chris additional time with Evan, she has only allowed additional time when 

she and Chris are getting along; therefore, her likelihood to foster frequent associations and a 

continuing relationship between Evan and Chris are inappropriately linked to the current status of 

her own relationship with Chris. Also relevant to this factor is that, over the last year, Sandra 

unreasonably objected to and denied Chris opportunities to take Evan to New York where he has 

family and friends with whom he is close and activities that are not afforded to him Las Vegas. 
28 
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Meanwhile, Chris has proposed and will pay for, a reasonable alternative visitation schedule that 

will permit Sandra and her family to have frequent associations and a continuing relationship with 

Evan. 

The level of conflict between the parents is higher than it should be; however, as can be 

seen in the emails between the parties this is in no small part because Sandra perceives any amount 

of co-parenting to be "harassment" The reality is that Sandra has not had to co-parent with her 

other two children's fathers. Desmond's father is not in the picture at all, and Kayla's father is 

marginalized. Chris suspects that Sandra's continued resistence to co-parenting is, in fact, whether 

consciously done or not, an attempt to similarly marginalize him. 

Despite the level of conflict, Evan's basic needs are met. However, Chris believes Evan's 

needs could be met at a higher level but-for: (1) Sandra's refusal to enroll Evan in private school 

and extracurricular activities (all at Chris's expense); and (2) her apparent failure to routinely 

engage Evan with children his own age outside of school. 

The mental and physical health of the parents is not an issue. Nor does Evan have any 

special physical, mental or emotional needs, even though Sandra continues to maintain Evan in 

therapy in the absence of any objective evidence that he needs it and over Chris's objection. Chris 

disagrees that Evan needs therapy simply because there is continued conflict between Sandra and 

Chris. The conflict exists because Sandra perceives every communication from Chris to be 

harassment— this is Sandra's problem, not Evan's. Chris is not fundamentally opposed to therapy, 

but he does not think it is particularly healthy for Evan to spend his entire childhood in therapy. 

Notably, when Chris and Sandra were getting along, Sandra ceased taking Evan to therapy and 

unilaterally resumed therapy— against the terms of the parenting plan— when for reasons Chris still 

fails to understand, Sandra decided to end the friendly terms on which they had been on for several 

months. 

Although Evan does not have any special, physical, mental or emotional needs, Chris does 

believe that all of these could be met at a higher level, as explained above. He is prepared to do 

that but he is restrained by Sandra, as well as the distance that his own split life between Las Vegas 

and New York creates. For the most part, Chris perceives that Sandra has a done a satisfactory job 
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raising her other two children, especially given that she did so essentially as a single parent. 

However, there have been disconcerting episodes between Sandra and Desmond in which Sandra 

has sometimes sought Chris's assistance. Sandra has not gone out of her way to engage her other 

children in extracurricular activities. Chris is informed and believes that Desmond participated in 

baseball and Kayla participated in dance for a time, but Sandra failed to consistently take them to 

either activity. By contrast, Chris has organized his life around his commitment to Evan and wants 

to provide him with still more tools and opportunities to meet his needs at the highest level. The 

example of Chris's own hard work and professional success are also beneficial for Evan. 

The level of opportunity that Chris desires to create for Evan is not to be confused with 

a sense of entitlement. At its root, the Ferraro family is fundamentally a middle-class family who 

know the value of a dollar and have achieved a great deal through hard work. Again, this is not 

meant as a disparaging comment on Sandra or her family, she can speak for them herself. 

Chris can really only speak for his own relationship with Evan, which is terrific. They share 

a very close and loving relationship. Chris does not doubt Sandra and Evan also love each other 

very much. Nor does Chris deny that Evan should maintain a relationship with Kayla and 

Desmond, but they are considerably older, with Evan nearing his 7t1  Kayla coming on 13 

and Desmond having graduated highschool. This is different from splitting up two boys only a year 

or two apart. They will be able to maintain their relationship through Sandra's visitation. 

Chris is not aware of any abuse or neglect by either parent as defined by NRS Chapter 

432B. Nor is Chris aware of any allegations of violence or abduction occurring since the initial 

hearings in this case in 2010 (each made cross-allegations against the other). 

3. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, Chris respectfully requests: 

(1) Reaffirm that the parties' shall continue to share joint legal custody; 

(2) Modify the present joint physical custody order to grant Chris primary physical 

custody of Evan in New York; 

(3) Incorporate the proposed visitation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A to ensure 
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By: 
Sh 	WThsOiT-(9V-33) 
Todi L. Moody (5430) 
Peccole Professional Park 
10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
Tel: 	(702) 385-2500 
Fax: (702) 385-2086 
swilsoia,hutchlegal.com  
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frequent visitation for Evan and Sandra, 

2 	(4) Order Sandra to pay statutory child support; 

3 	(5) Order Chris to pay reasonable costs of transportation; and 

4 	(6) Grant other related relief as is necessary and just. 

5 	DATED this  it/  day of June, 2015. 

6 
	

HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, LLC 

Attorneys for Defendant Christopher Michael Ferraro 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

-28- 

   AA00226



-J S
T

E
F

F
E

N
  

A
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 

H
U

T
  C

H
I

S
 O

N
 

day of June, 2015. 

RISTOPHER FERRARO 

DATED this 

NIKKI L. TRAUTOMN 
Krtary Pubk 5 te of Hoyt:m.1 

Mo. 95-95993-1 
apor  

1 
	

VERIFICATION 

2 
STATE OF NEVADA 

3 
	

) ss. 
4 COUNTY OF CLARK 	) 

5 
	I, CHRISTOPHER FERRARO, under penalties of perjury, being first duly sworn, 

6 deposes and says: 

That I am the Defendant in the action entitled Sandra Lynn Nance v. Christopher 

Michael Ferraro; lodged in the Eighth Judicial District Court — Family Division, for the State 

of Nevada, that I have read the statement of facts in DEFENDA1N T CHRISTOPHER 

FERRARO'S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY, FOR RELOCATION OF MINOR 

CHILD AND OTHER RELATED RELIEF herein and know the contents thereof; that the 

same is true of my own knowledge, except for those matters therein stated on information and 

belief, and as to those matters, I believe the same to be true. 

State of evada 	) 
) ss. 

County of Clark 	) 

SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me 

23 this V"day of June, 2015 by  Cli0 	\sck_c 0 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to 1\ RCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of HUTCHISON & STEFFEN 

-1X1  
LLC and that on this  eit  day of June, 2015, I caused the above and foregoing document 

entitled DEFENDANT CHRISTOPHER FE RO'S MOTION TO MODIFY 

CUSTODY, FOR RELOCATION OF MINOR CHILD, AND OTHER RELATED 

RELIEF to be served as follows: 

I=1 	by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States Mail, in a 
sealed envelope upon which first class postage was prepaid in Las Vegas, 
Nevada; and/or 

0 	pursuant to EDCR 7.26, to be sent via facsimile; and/or 

pursuant to EDCR 8.05, sent electronically via the Court's electronic service 
system; the date and time of this electronic service is in place of the date and in 
place of deposit in the mail. 

to be hand-delivered; 

to the attorney(s) listed below at the address and/or facsimile number indicated below: 

Alex Ghibaudo, Esq. 
SCHWAB LAW GROUP 
2800 W. Sahara Ave., Ste. 1H 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 
alex@sIglasvegas.com   

Attorney for Plaintiff Sandra Lynn Nance 

An employee of fruichicon & Steffen, LLC 
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